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212 Bardwell.
Mothersole William, farmer Pettit William, baker and broker Tippell David, shopkeeper and boot
-Noble Charles, victualler, Six Bells | Plummer David, grocer and butcher; and shoe maker
Palfrey James, boot and shoe maker and Ixworth Wainwright Thos. farmer, Wyken hl
Palfrey Thomas, thatcher Plummer George, boot & shoe maker | Whittaker Michael, blacksmith
Palfrey William, thatcher - Plummer James, shopkeeper Carniers—George Holden, to Bury,
‘Peto James, farmer, Barningham | Ruddock Samuel, shopkeeper ‘Wed., to T'hetford, Sat.; and Henry

park Soer Walter, boot and shoe maker Addison, to Bury, Wed. and Sat
. BARNHAM.

BARNHAM is a parish and pleasant village, 2} miles 8. of Thetford, and 9 miles N. of Bury St.’
Edmunds, in’ Thetford Union, and County Court district, and having 434 inhabitants and 5184 acres
of land, including a large portion of sandy heath, forming an open sheep walk. The line of railway
now being formed between Bury St. Edmunds and Thetford passes close to the village, where it will
have a station. The Duke of Grafton is owner of the soil and lord of the manor, which was formerly in
two parishes, and had two Cmurches, but that dedicated to St. Martin has been in ruins more than a
century, and is now thickly mantled with ivy. The other Cruncn (St. Gregory) is a neat structure, con-
sisting of nave, chancel, aisle, and tower containing an excellent clock, four bells and chimes. The late
Duke of Grafton added the aisle in 1864, by which the original accommodation was nearly doubled, and
otherwise improved the fabric, which has been reseated throughout with open benches. ~The clock was
presented in 1872 by the Rev. R. Sutton, the rector of West 'Lofts, near Brandon, Norfolk. The cost of
fixing it and the chimes was defrayed by the tenants of the Duke of Grafton, as a token of their esteem.

- The consolidated rectories of St. Gregory and St. Martin, valued in K.B.at £7. 11s. 104d. and £8. 5s. 5d.,
are united with that of Euston, in the patronage of the Duke of Grafton, and incumbency of the Hon. and
Rev. A. F. Phipps, chaplain in ordinary to the Queen, and rural dean, who resides at Buston. The tithes
of Barnham have been commuted for about £400, and those of Euston for £296. 12s. 6d. per annum.
Between these parishes and Thetford, is a_row of 10 or 11 tumuli, supposed to mark the scene of the
sanguinary engagement between King Edmund and the Danes in 870. (See Bury.) The Duke of
Grafton and the rector support two excellent schools for the education of poor children. The Poor's
Land is held on leases for nearly a thousand years, granted in 1786, and now held, one rood by the rec-
tor for 10s., and 3a. by the Duke of Grafton for £2 per annum. :

Posr from Thetford, which is the nearest Money Order and Telegraph Office.

Banham Edmund, parish clerk and | Edwards Fredk. farmer, West farm | Phipps Hon. & Rev. Augustus Fredk.

carrier Gayford George, farmer, Rymer point M.A., J.P. rural dean and rector;
Belsham Henry, boot & shoo maker | Lusher Mrs Mary, wheelwright and | h Kuston
_Bolingbroke John, shopkeeper blacksmith g Spratt George, miller, farmer and
Cooper Wm. Wainwright, farmer Minng David, shopkeeper merchant, overseer, assessor and
Debenham Chas. boot & shoe mkr | Nunn Mrs collector of taxes .
Deeks Edward, farmer and victual- | Plows Rev William, M.A. curate, | Turner George, farmer, North farm
- ler, Grafton Arms - Parsonage Carrier—Banham, to Thetford, Sat.
BARNINGHAM. .

BARNINGHAM is a scattered village and parish, 6 miles W. of Botesdale, and N.N.E. of Ixworth,
in Thetford Union and County Court district, and has 446 inhabitants, and 1586 acres of fertile land.
Cornell Fison, Isq., of Thetford, who is lord of the manor, and Robert W. Bevan, Esq., are the prin-
cipal owners. Barningham Park estate is in Bardwell parish, adjoining Euston Park, and is the pro-
perty of the Dulke of Grafton, whose family purchased it of the Sheltons, formerly seated there. Twr
Cuurcx (St. Andrew) is a neat edifice, with a tower and three bells. The benefice is a discharged rec-
tory, valued in K.B. at £31. 9s. 04d., and united with Coney-Weston, in the patronage of the Rev. James
Edwards, M.A., and incumbency of the Rev. Arthur Edwards, M.A., who has a. good residence and 24A.
of glebe. The tithes of the two parishes wero commuted in 1843, for a yearly rent-charge of £907.
Here is a WESLEYAN CHAPEL, built in 1811, and rebuilt in 1854. A Narronar ScHooL was built in 1859,
The Town Estate consists of several tenements, occupied by poor families, rent free; and 17a. 3=, 34r.,
of land, let for £34. 18s. per annum, which is applied in the service of the church and the payment of
salaries to the parish clerk and constable, except 21s. a year, which is distributed in bread among the
poor, as the rent of about half an acre, purchased with £10 given by William Fuller, in 1622. The
Poor’s Allotment consists of 20 acres, let for £21 a year, and was awarded to the poor in licu of their
right of cutting fuel on the open lands. The rents are distributed in coals.

Post Orrice at Mr. Edward Catton’s. Letters are received at 8.30 a.m. from, and are despatched
at 4.30 p.m. to Bury St. Edmunds. Ixworth is the nearest Money Order Office; and East Harling the
nearest Railway Station, 5 g

Baker James, farmer Catton Edward (Edward & George), | Elven Thomas, farm bailiff
Bishop Mr Joseph and postmaster. Fellgate Francis, market gardener
Bloomfield Edward, bricklayer Dennis William, farmer; and at| Fison Cornell, farmer, Hall
Bloomfield Francis, shoemaker Stanton Fison James, farmer, College farm .
Catton Edward & George, wheel-| Easlea Dennis, farmer The Lodge | Goodchild John, farmer

wrights and machinists Edwards Rev Arthur, M.A. rector,| Goodchild Thomas, farmer
, Darken Robert, market gardener Rectory Green Rey F. C. curate
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Blackbourn Hundred.

—_—

« Holden David, carrier Nickerson George, engineer, mill-

Holden George, fariaer

Kent Miss Mary Ann, Nt1. schlmrs

Lingwood Walter, corn miller and
merchant, Steam mill

Lusher Henry, blacksmith

Nickerson James, farmer

Pennock William, farmer

Ransom John, grocer, draper, farmer
and dealer

Raynham Thomas, farm bailiff

Saunders Robt. Thog, grocer &drapr| nes

—_—
CONEY-WESTON.

R13

Tydeman Martin, boot and shoe
wright and ironfounder maker and parish clerk

Tydeman Mrs

‘Whittaker Henry, victualler, Swan

CARRIER.—D, Holden, to Bury, Wed-

day and Saturday

bbey. THE Crunom (St. Mnry)'

is a small thatehed structure, which underwent considerable Testoration in 1869,

tory, valued in K.B. K
nuted in 1843, for g yearly rent-charge of £433. 19g.
Town Estate comprises 8 acres of land, let for £7. 16s
The rent is applied in the reparation of the church.

The benefice is a roc.
The tithes here were com-

- & year, and partly lying in Barningham parish,

1611, for the poor of thlxs parish, was laid out in the purchase of land at Rattlesden, now let “for £3 per

the year 1774, and now let for £5 a year, subject to the right of the poor ¢
Posr fr Ixworth, which is the nearest Money Order Office.

Andscombe Ovid, parish clerk

Bloomfield Ldward, carpenter

Bloomfield John, boot & shoe maker

Bridgman Migs Elizabeth

Mary, | Edwards Rey Arthur, M.A, rector ;
Coney-Weston Hall

h Barningham
e
CULFORD.

CULFORD is o parish and small scattered village, on a pleasant acclivi

vale of the Lark, four miles N.N.W. of Bury St. Edmund’s. It is in 'Thingoe Union and B
Edmund’s County Court district, and has 304 persons, and 2217 acres of land, ineludin,

Brothers William, carrier Halls Hy. Jag. farmer, Lodge farm
Eaton Charles, farmer, Street farm Hogg Robert, carpenter

Eaton George, farmer, Heath farm Martin John, shopkeeper

Quantrell Miss Llizabeth, schoolmrs
Sturgeon Nathan, gamekeeper

ty, on the north side of the

of the large hut now enclosed and cultivated heath, which extends about four miles northward. Chimne

Mills, formerly extra-parochial, is now annexed to this parish, and haq in

2 4
1871, a population of four

Culford wag anciently the lordship of Bury Abbey, by gift of Thurketel Tyreing. The Rev.

Edward Richarq Benyon, M.A., J.P., of Culford Hall, is lord of the Inanor, and owns and oceupies the

chief part of the soil,

The Hall is a large and handsome mansion, in a beautifu] park of 500 acres, on
the west side of the village, extending to the river Lark, and having a fine sheet of Wwater,

It was_ built in 1591, by Sir Nicholas Bacon, the first baronet of England, eldest son of the

and extensive

ord keeper, and half-brother of the lord chancellor, and was given by him, with an ostate of £1000 per

annum, to his seventh son, Nathaniel, who married Jane Meautys, widow of

Sir William Cornwallis, to

Culford Hall was the principal seat of Marquis Cornwallis,

who sold nearly all his estates in this county, before his death in 1823. It wag rebuilt by the first
Marquis, whose military achievements jn India earned for him the marquisate, and a monument in St.
Paul's Cathedral. The Rev. E. RR. Benyon owns nearly 12,000 acres in this and the parishes of Ingham,
West Stow, Wordwell, and Timworth, most of which formed part of the estates of the Cornwallig famil,

His uncle, Richard Benyon de Beauvoir, Esq., of Englefield House, Berkshire, and Culford Hall, left

in real and personal Dbroperty, seven millions and a half. His original name

e representcd Berkshire in Parliament; his Droperty being then some £20,000 2 year.

Most unexpec-

tedly, about the year 1814, he was lefg considerably over a million by the Rev. Peter de Beauvoir, no

relative; he thereupon assumed the patronymic of de Beauvoir in addition

‘living was that of 5 plain country gentleman, devoid of extravagance or sho

tohis own. His mode of

Ww. CuLrorp Crurcr (St.

lary) consisting of nave, chancel, vestry, porch, and a square embattled tower, containing one bell, is a

handsome stone and flint structure in the Barly English style, rebuilt by the

Dresent rector, the Rey. T,

R. Benyon, M.A., in 1856, except the brick tower, which was at his expense leightened and faced with

Bath stone and flint,

1t contains a handsome monument and bust of Sir Nathaniel Bacon, with g long

Inscription in memory of his wife, giving her g high character as having saved from ruin two ancient

families, into whicl, she had married.
rectory, valued in K.B. at £8, and united with Ingham and Timworth, in the

The benefice is g discharged

Datronage and incumbency

of the Rev. E. R. Benyon, MA., who erected a small CHAPEL-0F-Easg (St. Peter) in 1841, on the Heath,

in the northern part of the parish, It contains several windows of stained glass.

A good residence was

built in 1864, for the officiating minister, The value of the joint benefices was estimated at £549 per

annum, in 1835, but ag the rector is the lord of the anors, and owner of ne
the tithes are compounded in the rent,

Iere is an Infant school, built in 1864

arly all the three parishes,
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